
 
 

Shelton City Council 
Meeting Agenda 

July 11, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. 
Civic Center & Virtual Platform 

 
 

 
A.  Call to Order 

• Pledge of Allegiance 
• Roll Call 
• Late Changes to the Agenda 

 
B.  Council Reports 
 
C.  Consent Agenda (Action) 

1.  Vouchers numbered 108445 through 108453 in the total amount of $1,057,163.11 
2.  Vouchers numbered APA002808 through APA002841 in the total amount of $124,638.50 
3.  Vouchers numbered 108466 through 108469 in the total amount of $2,380.50 
4.  Vouchers numbered APA002842 through APA002865 in the total amount of $284,370.06 
5.  Vouchers numbered 108478 through 108491 in the total amount of $85,869.89 
6.  Vouchers numbered APA002866 through APA002899 in the total amount of $114,919.19 
7.  Minutes: 

• Business Meeting of May 16, 2023 
• Study Session of May 23, 2023 

 
D.  Business Agenda (Study/No Action/Public Comment Taken) 
     1.  Resolution No. 1274-0623 Civic Center Parking Lot Final Acceptance – Presented by Public  
          Works Director Jay Harris 
     2.  Public Hearing – Ordinance No. 2006-0523 Intent to Vacate 5th Street-Grove Street to Cota Street –   
          Presented by Public Works Director Jay Harris 
     3.  Public Hearing – Ordinance No. 2008-0623 Repealing & Re-adopting Ch. 2.56-Relating to the Police   
          Department – Presented by City Manager Mark Ziegler 
     4.  Resolution No. 1275-0623 Approval of City Manager Contract – Presented by City Manager Mark Ziegler   
 
E.  Action Agenda (Action/Public Comment Taken)  
     1.  Traffic Box Wrap Project - Presented by Recreation Coordinator Jordanne Krumpols 
 
F.  Administration Reports 
      1.  City Manager Report 
 
G.  General Public Comment (3-minute time limit) 
      The City Council invites members of the public to provide comment on any topic at this time.  To make comments in person, please 
        sign in on the public comment sheet and keep an instruction card.  If you would like to comment on a Business or Action item, please 
        list the agenda item number on the list.  To comment virtually using Zoom, please use the “Raise Hand” feature to alert the City Clerk. 
        If you have joined Zoom on your telephone, dial *9 to use the “Raise Hand” feature.  City Councilmembers and City Staff will not enter 
        into a dialogue during public comment.  If the Council feels an issue requires follow up, Staff will be directed to respond at an    
        appropriate time. 
 
 
 



  
  
H.  New Items for Discussion 
 
I.  Announcement of Next Meeting – July 18, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
J.  Adjourn 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Special Note for Virtual Public Participation 
 

The meeting can be viewed at: https://www.youtube.com/user/cityofshelton 

The public can provide comments virtually by: 
Email:  donna.nault@sheltonwa.gov (before 5:00pm the day of the meeting)  

Telephone: (360) 432-5103 (before 5:00pm the day of the meeting) 
Join the Zoom meeting by clicking on the link posted on the City Council’s webpage 

 
Your comments will be relayed directly to the Council. 

https://www.youtube.com/user/cityofshelton
mailto:donna.nault@sheltonwa.gov


 

Updated 7/3/2023 
 

  
2023 Looking Ahead 
    (Items and dates are subject to change) 

 
 

 
Tues. 7/18 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentation 
• May Financial Status Report 

Business Agenda 
• Public Hearing Ordinance No. 2009-0623 

Amending SMC – Title 2 
• Resolution No. 1276-0623 Agreement with 

Cascade Pacific Action Alliance 
Action Agenda 

• Resolution No. 1274-0623 Civic Center 
Parking Lot Final Acceptance 

• Ordinance No. 2006-0523 Intent to Vacate 
5th St. – Grove St. to Cota St. 

• Ordinance No. 2008-0623 Repealing &  
Re-adopting Ch. 2.56 – Relating to Police 
Department 

• Resolution No. 1275-0623 Approval of City 
Manager Contract 

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
7/7 @ 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 7/25 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda 
• FCS Group - Utility Rate Study  

Packet Items Due: 
7/21 @ noon 

Tues. 8/1 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentation 
•  

Business Agenda 
•  

Action Agenda 
• Ordinance No. 2009-0623 Amending SMC – 

Title 2 
• Resolution No. 1276-0623 Agreement with 

Cascade Pacific Action Alliance 
Administration Report 

•  

Packet Items Due: 
7/21 @ 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 8/8 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda 
• Engineering Street Standards Update 

Packet Items Due: 
8/4 @ noon 

Tues. 8/15 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentation 
• Forest Festival LTAC Report 
• June Financial Status Report 

Packet Items Due: 
8/4 @ 5:00 p.m. 



 

Updated 7/3/2023 
 

Business Agenda 
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Tues. 8/22 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda 
• 2024 Budget Discussion 

Packet Items Due: 
8/18 @ noon 

Tues. 9/5 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentation 
•  

Business Agenda 
• Public Hearing Ordinance No. 2003-0523 

Adoption of 2021 International Fire Code 
• Public Hearing Ordinance No. 2004-0523 

Adoption of 2021 International Building Code 
Action Agenda 

•  
Administration Report 

•  

Packet Items Due: 
8/25 @ 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 9/12 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda Packet Items Due: 
9/8 @ noon 

Tues. 9/19 
5:45 p.m. 

SMPD Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Meeting Minutes 

Business Agenda 
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
9/8 @ 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 9/19 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentation 
• July Financial Status Report 

Business Agenda 
•  

Action Agenda 
• Ordinance No. 2003-0523 Adoption of 2021 

International Fire Code 
• Ordinance No. 2004-0523 Adoption of 2021 

International Building Code 
Administration Report 

•  

Packet Items Due: 
9/8 @ 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 9/26 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda Packet Items Due: 
9/22 @ noon 

Other – TBD 

• Water and Sewer Fee Schedule Revisions (Ordinance removing rates from SMC) 
• Public Hearing Ordinance No. 1990-0522 Amending SMC 17.12 
• FCS Group Preliminary Water & Sewer Rate Presentation 
• Project and Funding Authorization for Wallace/Shelton Springs Intersection Improvements 



 

Updated 7/3/2023 
 

• Property Maintenance Code 

































































































 
 

CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON - CITY COUNCIL 
City Council Meeting Minutes 

May 16, 2023 – 6:00 p.m. 
Civic Center & Virtual Platform 

COUNCILMEMBERS AND PERSONNEL  
Councilmembers: Personnel: 
Mayor Eric Onisko Interim City Manager Mark Ziegler 
Deputy Mayor Joe Schmit City Clerk Donna Nault 
James Boad Finance Director Mike Githens 
Miguel Gutierrez Public Works Director Jay Harris 
Kathy McDowell Recreation Coordinator Jordanne Krumpols 
Deidre Peterson   
Sharon Schirman   
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Call to Order: 6:00 p.m. 
Pledge of Allegiance: Mayor Onisko 
Roll Call: City Clerk Nault – All present 
 
LATE CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
None 
 
CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 
Swatting incident at Shelton High School 
Shelton Park Advisory Board 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
1. Vouchers numbered 108284 through 108299 in the total amount of $102,496.69 
2. Vouchers numbered APA002515 through APA002552 in the total amount of $176,305.96 
3. Voucher numbered 108300 in the total amount of $2,500.00 
4. Vouchers numbered 108331 through 108345 in the total amount of $32,392.07 
5. Vouchers numbered APA002553 through APA002592 in the total amount of $71,680.17 
6. Minutes: 
  •  Joint Meeting – City Council & Port Commission of February 17, 2023 
  •  Business Meeting of April 18, 2023 
 
A motion was made by Deputy Mayor Schmit and seconded by Councilmember McDowell to approve the 
Consent Agenda as published. Passed. 
 
PRESENTATION 
1. March Financial Status Report – Finance Director Mike Githens  
 

Finance Director Githens presented the city’s March financial report. Discussion followed. 
 

2. Timberland Regional Library Update – Presented by Executive Director Cheryl Heywood 
 

Executive Director Cheryl Heywood reviewed the Timberland Regional Library’s 2020-2024 Strategic Plan.  
 
 
 



 

City Council – May 16, 2023 - Meeting Minutes 
Civic Center & Virtual Platform  Page 2 of 2 

BUSINESS AGENDA 
None 
 
ACTION AGENDA 
1. Resolution No. 1271-0423 Aspect Consulting Contract Change Order No. 2 – Presented by Public Works 

Director Jay Harris 
 
 Public Works Director Harris discussed an amendment to Aspect Consulting’s contract to compensate for 

additional design, inspection, and monitoring of waste removal. No Discussion. No public comment. City 
Clerk Nault provided the reading of Resolution No. 1271-0423.  

 
A motion was made by Deputy Mayor Schmit and seconded by Councilmember Gutierrez to adopt Resolution  
No. 1271-0423 as presented. Passed. 
 
2. Civic Center Rotating Art Gallery – Presented by Recreation Coordinator Jordanne Krumpols  
 
 Recreation Coordinator Krumpols presented the Shelton Arts Commission’s recommendations for the 

Rotating Art Gallery. Discussion followed. 
 
A motion was made by Councilmember Gutierrez and seconded by Councilmember Peterson to approve Shelton  
Arts Commission’s recommendations for placement in the Civic Center Art Gallery. Passed. 
 
ADMINISTRATION REPORT: 
1. Interim City Manager Report  

• Community Clean-Up 
• Legislature fixed “The Blake Decision” 
• WWTP 2022 Outstanding Performance Award 
• Upcoming Study Session May 23 

 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 
In-Person:  Zoom: 
Athena Ayres Colleen Carmichael 
Dean Jewett 
 
NEW ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
None 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT MEETING 
Study Session – May 23, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. 
City Council Meeting – June 6, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
MEETING ADJOURN 
Mayor Onisko adjourned the meeting at 6:46 p.m. 
 
 
___________________________  _________________________________ 
Mayor Eric Onisko  City Clerk Donna Nault 



 
 

CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON - CITY COUNCIL 
Study Session Minutes 

May 23, 2023 – 6:00 p.m. 
Civic Center & Virtual Platform 

 

City Council - Study Session 
May 23, 2023 
Civic Center & Virtual Platform Page 1 of 1 
 

 

COUNCILMEMBERS AND PERSONNEL  
Councilmembers: Personnel:  
Mayor Eric Onisko Interim City Manager Mark Ziegler 
Deputy Mayor Joe Schmit City Clerk Donna Nault  
James Boad Public Works Director Jay Harris  
Miguel Gutierrez Public Works Superintendent Brent Armstrong 
Sharon Schirman 
Deidre Peterson 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Call to Order: 6:00 p.m. 
Roll Call: City Clerk Nault – Absent: Councilmember McDowell 
 
STUDY AGENDA 
1. Street Trees-Downtown Corridor – Presented by Public Works Director Jay Harris 
 
 Public Works Director Harris reviewed street trees, sidewalks, and striping on the downtown corridor. 

Discussion followed.  
 
 Interim City Manager Ziegler provided information on a Therapeutic Court grant opportunity. A letter of 

support from the City would be required. City Council approved moving forward with the City’s letter of 
support. 

 
NEW ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
None 
 
ADJOURN 
Mayor Onisko adjourned the meeting at 7:03 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________  _________________________________ 
Mayor Eric Onisko     City Clerk Donna Nault 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item D1) 

Touch Date:    06/13/2023  
Brief Date:       07/11/2023 
Action Date:  07/18/2023 

Department: Public Works 
   
Presented By: Jay Harris 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
  Civic Center Parking Lot Final 

Acceptance 
 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
- Resolution No. 1274-0623  
- PowerPoint Presentation 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  J.O.H. 

 
 

 
Finance Director   

 
 

 
Attorney  

 
 

 
City Clerk  

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
On June 23, 2022, City Staff distributed an Invitation to Bid (ITB) for construction of the 2022 Civic Center 
Parking Lot Project.  Two responsive bids were opened on July 19, 2022.  City Council approved a contract 
with Miles Resources, LLC for their low bid of $502,000.25. 

 
Construction of the project commenced on September 26th 2022 and on November 28th the project was 
deemed Substantially Complete.  The Contractor returned on April 5th, 2023, to complete remaining punch list 
items and the Physical Completion letter was issued that same day.  
The final amount to be paid to the Contractor, after retainage and tax, will be $502,483.71.  

   
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
N/A 
   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
Staff successfully secured two grants for this project, the Washington State Department of Commerce 
($277,340) and Shelton Centennial Lions Club ($4200).  $178,908.67 is remaining in the Washington State 
Department of Commerce end of May 2022 as the grant allowed for reimbursement of design costs.  The 2022 
budget includes $51,000 from the Transportation Benefit District, $21,000 from the General Fund and $20,000 
from the storm drainage capital fund.  There is $200,000 carry over from 2021 budget.  The supplemental 
budget amendment approved on 7-5-22 added $50,000 from the General Fund to the project budget.  There is 
a total budget for the project of $537,862.50.  The total payment to Miles Resources, LLC for completion of the 
2022 Civic Center Parking Lot Project, after retainage and taxes, will be $502,483.71. 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Information can be obtained from the Public Works Department. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff recommends “I move to place Resolution No. 1274-0623 on the July 18th, 2023 Action Agenda for further 
consideration”.  



RESOLUTION NO. 1274-0623 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON 
ACCEPTING THE CIVIC CENTER PARKING LOT PROJECT AS FINAL AND COMPLETE 

 
 
WHEREAS, a Contract for the 2022 Civic Center Parking Lot Project was awarded to Miles Resources, LLC 
in the amount of $502,000.25 on August 2, 2022, following a competitive bidding process; and  
 
WHEREAS, construction of the project commenced September 22, 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, the project was deemed Substantially Complete on November 28, 2022 and achieved 
Physical Completion on April 5th, 2023; and 
 
WHEREAS, the final amount paid to the Contractor, after tax and retainage, will be $502,483.71; and 
 
WHEREAS, all documentation required by the Contract and required by law for final acceptance of the 
project has been furnished by the Contractor. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Shelton that the 2022 Civic Center 
Parking Lot Project is accepted as final and complete. 
 
INTRODUCED on the 11th day of July 2023 and PASSED by the City Council at its regular meeting held on 
this 18th day of July 2023. 
 
 
 
                                                                          __________________________________ 
ATTEST:                                                                Mayor Onisko 
 
   
____________________________  
City Clerk Nault  
 
 



Civic Center Parking Lot
Final Acceptance

7-11-2023



Parking lot starting construction looking eastSports Court during construction

Parking lot prior to construction looking westAerial View of parking lot prior to construction



Pouring concrete flatwork

Pouring concrete curbs

Spreading gravel during construction 

Sports court ready for concrete



Paver installation

Start of paver installation

Paver installation

Spreading gravel



Parking lot striping

Parking lot trees Sports court striping

Parking lot striping



Grass installed Shrubbery installed

Ribbon Cutting CeremonyUnveiling of the Lincoln Gym Memorial Court Sign 



Farmers Market in New Parking Lot



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item D2) 

Touch Date: 5/16/2023 
Brief Date:       7/11/2023 
Action Date:  7/18/2023 

Department: Public Works 
   
Presented By: Jay Harris 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE:  
Vacate 5th Street from Grove-Cota 
 
  ATTACHMENTS:  

• Ordinance 2006-0523 
• Exhibit A – Vicinity Map of Area 

to be Vacated. 
• Exhibit B – Legal Description & 

Sketch. 
   

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  J.O.H. 

 
 

 
Finance Director   

 
 

 
Attorney  

 
 

 
City Clerk  

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   

The City of Shelton Police Department utilizes most of the parking on 5th Street from Cota to Grove Streets 
and recently received a grant from the State to install fencing and electric gates to limit public access into 
the Police parking area. 
 
With the installation of the fencing improvements, 5th Street between Cota and Grove Streets will be closed 
to public vehicular traffic.  The sidewalk on the east side of 5th Street will remain open for pedestrian traffic. 
 
To allow for the closure of the roadway to the public, the 5th Street right-of-way will need to be vacated by 
the City.  A public and private utility easement will be retained over the vacated roadway section for phone, 
gas, electricity, cable, water, sewer, and storm drainage facilities.  A public sidewalk easement will be 
retained over the easterly portion of the proposed street vacation area. 

 
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  

The Council may approve, approve with conditions or changes, or deny the vacation of public right of way 
request. 

   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
  N/A 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
 Legal Notice of the Public Hearing has been placed in the Mason County Journal, and posted at the 

Shelton Civic Center, Mason County Building 1, the Post office, and the area to be vacated per RCW 
Section 35.79. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
  “I move to forward Ordinance No. 2006-0523 to the July 18th, 2023 City Council Action Agenda for further 

consideration”. 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 2006-0523 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, VACATING 

5th STREET BETWEEN GROVE AND COTA 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Shelton is initiating the vacation of public right-of-way pursuant 
to RCW 35.79.010 upon the following described street in the City of Shelton; 
 

That portion of 5th Street lying South of the South Right-of-Way line of Cota Street 
and lying North of the following described line: 
 
Beginning at the Northeast Corner of Parcel 2 as described in Statutory Warranty 
Deed recorded under Auditor’s File Number 605432, and as shown on Record of 
Survey filed in Book 23, Page 201, under Auditor’s File Number 670877, records 
of Mason County, Washington.  
 
Thence East along a line measured perpendicular to the East line of said 5th Street 
to a point on said East line and the Terminus of the herein described line.  
 
Being within the Northeast Quarter of Section 19, Township 20 North, Range 3 
West, W.M., City of Shelton, Mason County Washington. 

 
WHEREAS, the vacation of 5th Street between Grove and Cota is allowable per RCW 
35.79; AND 
 
WHEREAS, the vacation is in the public interest; AND 
 
WHEREAS, no property will be denied direct access as a result of vacation; AND 
 
WHEREAS, a Public Hearing was held before the City Council of the City of Shelton on 
July 11th, 2023, pursuant to RCW 35.79.020 upon due notice, wherein the City Council 
determined to grant the request, finding that the application is in accordance with all 
requirements of State law and that the vacation would be in the best interest of the citizens 
of the City of Shelton. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Shelton, 
Washington: 
 

1. That portion of the right of way as shown on Exhibit B herewith attached, is 
within the City of Shelton, Mason County, Washington be hereby VACATED; 
PROVIDED that the City shall retain an easement or the right to exercise and 
grant easements in respect to the vacated land for the construction, repair and 
maintenance of overhead and underground public and private utilities including 



water, sewer, storm drainage, electric, gas, cable, communication, and tele-
phone facilities. The City also retains a public sidewalk easement over the east-
erly 8 feet of the street vacation area. 

 
EFFECTIVE DATE: This ordinance shall take effect five days after its passage, approval, 
and publication as required by law.  
 
INTRODUCED the 11th day of July 2023. 
 
ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington at a regular open public 
meeting held the 18th day of July 2023. 
 

                                                                              
 
______________________________ 

ATTEST:                                                                Mayor Onisko 
 
____________________________  
Donna Nault, City Clerk  
  
 
  
 
 
 
  



320195116001 

jharris
Text Box
VICINITY MAP5th Street Right-of-Way VacationNo Scale

jharris
Polygonal Line

jharris
Line

jharris
Line

jharris
Text Box

jharris
Text Box
5th Street R/W Vacation Area

jharris
Text Box
City of SheltonCivic Center

jharris
Text Box
City of Shelton

jharris
Text Box
City of Shelton

jharris
Text Box
City of Shelton

jharris
Text Box
City of Shelton



Page 1 of 1 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 
Adjacent to Parcel No. 32019-51-16001 
5TH Street Right-of-Way Vacation 
 
That portion of 5th Street lying South of the South Right-of-Way line of Cota Street and lying North of the 
following described line: 
BEGINNING at the Northeast Corner of Parcel 2 as described in Statutory Warranty Deed recorded under 
Auditor’s File Number 605432, and as shown on Record of Survey filed in Book 23, Page 201, under 
Auditor’s File Number 670877, records of Mason County, Washington. 
THENCE East along a line measured perpendicular to the East line of said 5th Street to a point on said 
East line and the TERMINUS of the herein described line. 
Being within the Northeast Quarter of Section 19, Township 20 North, Range 3 West, W.M. 
 
Situate in the City of Shelton, County of Mason, State of Washington. 
 
Contains: Approximately 16,209 Square Feet, more or less. 
 
 

EXHIBIT "B" 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION



PROPOSED ROAD VACATION

N.E. COR. PARCEL 2
SWD 605432, & ROS
BK. 23, PG 201.

CITY OF SHELTON
TAX PARCEL No.
32019-51-16001

160'80'40'0

1"=80'

CONSULTING ENGINEERS
1130 RAINIER AVENUE SOUTH, SUITE 300

SEATTLE, WASHINGTON 98144 (206) 284-0860

5TH ST. R/W VACATION

NOTE:
1. REFERENCE DEED: AFN 605432
2. REFERENCE SURVEY: BK. 23, PG. 201, AFN  670877

EXHIBIT "B" 
LEGAL DESCRTIPTION 

SKETCH



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item D3) 
Touch Date: 06/20/2023 
Brief Date:       07/11/2023 
Action Date:  07/18/2023 

Department: Executive 
   
Presented By: Mark Ziegler 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
Repeal and adoption of Shelton 
Municipal Code Chapter 2.56 
  
 ATTACHMENTS:  
 - Ordinance No. 2008-0623 
 - Existing Shelton Municipal Code 

Chapter 2.56  
  
   
 
  

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

Chief 
Beason 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
 

 
City Clerk 
 
City Manager 

 
 

  
 

 
     

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
Shelton Municipal Code Chapter 2.56 is not consistent with RCW 35A.13.080 City Manager – Powers and 
Duties and other provisions in the Shelton Municipal Code.   
 
RCW 35A.13.080(2) states:  To appoint and remove at any time all department heads, officers, and employees 
of the code city, except members of the council, and subject to the provisions of any applicable law, rule, or 
regulation relating to civil service: PROVIDED, That the council may provide for the appointment by the mayor, 
subject to confirmation by the council, of a city planning commission, and other advisory citizens' committees, 
commissions, and boards advisory to the city council: PROVIDED FURTHER, That if the municipal judge of the 
code city is appointed, such appointment shall be made by the city manager subject to confirmation by the 
council, for a four year term. The council may cause an audit to be made of any department or office of the code 
city government and may select the persons to make it, without the advice or consent of the city manager; 
 
Ordinance No. 2008-0623 has been rewritten by the City Attorney removing unnecessary and inconsistent 
provisions and updating the appointment procedure of the Shelton Police Chief to meet RCW.   
 
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
N/A 
 
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
There are no financial obligations with the proposed ordinance adoption.  
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff recommends: “I move to place Ordinance No. 2008-0623 on the July 18 Council Meeting Action Agenda 
for further consideration”. 
 



 

1 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2008-0623 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, REPEALING 

AND RE-ADOPTING CHAPTER 2.56 OF THE SHELTON MUNICIPAL CODE 

RELATING TO THE POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to update Chapter 2.56 of the Shelton Municipal Code 

to make it consistent with state laws, including civil service and collective bargaining 

provisions, as well as other sections of the municipal code.  

 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHELTON HEREBY 

ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. 

 

The current version of Chapter 2.56 of the Shelton Municipal Code is repealed in its entirety.  

 

Section 2. 

A new Chapter 2.56 shall be added to the Shelton Municipal Code to read as follows:  

2.56.010 Department established. 

There is created and established the police department of the city of Shelton, which 

department shall function and operate under the civil service laws of the state of Washington, 

RCW Chapter 41.12.  

2.56.020 Position of police chief established—Appointment, oath. 

There is created and established the position of chief of police who shall be appointed by the 

City Manager and shall qualify for such office in accordance with city ordinance and state 

laws including RCW 35.21.333. He/she shall take such oath of office as may be prescribed by 

the city council.  

2.56.030 Duties of police chief  

The chief of police shall be the executive officer of the police department and shall have 

direct control and management of all members of the department in the exercise of their 

duties, subject to the provisions of law and of city ordinances, departmental policies, and 

collective bargaining agreements. The chief of police shall have custody, care and control of 

the property and equipment of the police department and shall oversee preparation of the 

departmental budget. He/she shall conduct periodic surveys of such property and arrange for 

the appropriate acquisition and surplus of departmental property and equipment. The chief 

shall ensure that appropriate departmental policies are adopted, preside over grievances as 

consistent with collective bargaining agreements, and arrange for internal investigations as 

needed. The chief shall coordinate with the Administrative Services Department to keep 

personnel records for the department and shall ensure that personnel decisions are consistent 

with policies, applicable civil service rules, and state law. The chief shall provide reports to 

https://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=41.12


 

2 

 

the City Manager and City Council upon request. Additional or different duties may be 

assigned by contract. 

2.56.040 Duties of department. 

The duties and responsibilities of the police department shall include all duties and 

responsibilities prescribed by city ordinance, as well as the provisions of state and federal law. 

The police department has all such authority, responsibility, and duties as are normal to 

municipal police departments, including, but not limited to, maintenance of the peace, 

issuance of citations, arrest and detention of persons committing criminal offenses or who are 

mentally ill, investigation of criminal activity, establishment and maintenance of intelligence 

files, production of scientific evidence, crime prevention, animal control, and such other 

duties as are set by ordinance of the city or by the laws of the state. 

 

Section 3. 

 

Severability.  If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance should be held to be 

invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or 

unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other section, 

sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance. 

 

Section 4. 

 

Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect five days after its passage, approval, and 

publication as required by law.   

  

INTRODUCED the    day of    , 2023. 

 

 

 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Mason County, Washington at a regular 

open public meeting held the _________ day of    , 2023. 

 

 

                                                                             

______________________________ 

ATTEST:                                                                Mayor Onisko 

 

____________________________  

City Clerk Nault  

  

       

     

 

 



Shelton Municipal Code  
Chapter 2.56 POLICE DEPARTMENT* 

Page 1/2 

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 2001-1222, and legislation passed through March 7, 2023.  

 Chapter 2.56 

POLICE DEPARTMENT* 

Sections: 
2.56.010    Department established. 
2.56.020    Position of police chief established—Appointment, oath, bond. 
2.56.030    Powers of police chief—Designation of acting chief. 
2.56.040    Duties of department. 
2.56.050    Adoption of departmental regulations. 
2.56.060    Duties of police chief described. 
2.56.070    Procedure for appointment of police officers. 
2.56.080    Qualifications of police officers. 
2.56.090    Application for appointment—Medical report. 
2.56.100    Deposit of funds with treasurer-clerk—Certificate of chief. 
2.56.110    Deposit of fees, rewards. 

*    For statutory provisions authorizing cities of the second class to create, establish and regulate a city police, see RCW 
35.23.440(31); for provisions on civil service for city police, see RCW Ch. 41.12; for provisions on the chief of police and police 
force of a city of the second class, see RCW 35.23.120 and 35.23.130. 

2.56.010 Department established. 
There is created and established the police department of the city of Shelton, which department shall function and 
operate under the civil service laws of the state of Washington, RCW Chapter 41.12. (Prior code § 2.52.010) 

2.56.020 Position of police chief established—Appointment, oath, bond. 
There is created and established the position of chief of police who shall be nominated by the mayor and approved 
by a majority of the city council and shall qualify for such office in accordance with the rules and regulations of the 
civil service commission of the city of Shelton. He shall take such oath of office as may be prescribed by the city 
council, and shall execute a bond to the city in the penal sum of one thousand dollars, conditioned upon his 
satisfactory performance of his duties. (Ord. 1921-0518 (part), 2018; prior code § 2.52.020) 

2.56.030 Powers of police chief—Designation of acting chief. 
The chief of police shall be the executive officer of the police department and shall have direct control and 
management of all members of the department in the exercise of their duties, subject to the provisions of law and of 
city ordinances, and subject to such other lawful orders as may be issued by the mayor or the city council. In the 
absence or disability of the chief of police, the mayor shall designate a police officer to be acting chief of police, and 
such acting chief shall perform the duties and exercise the power and authority of the chief but shall be entitled to no 
additional salary. (Ord. 1921-0518 (part), 2018; prior code § 2.52.030) 

2.56.040 Duties of department. 
The chief of police and each police officer shall perform such duties as may be required by law, ordinance or city 
regulations, and shall be responsible for the maintenance of order, the prevention of crime and the protection of life 
or property of the citizens of the city. Each member of the police department shall give such assistance as is 
necessary, or as may be directed by the mayor or the city council, to any other city department or city officer. (Ord. 
1921-0518 (part), 2018; prior code § 2.52.040) 

2.56.050 Adoption of departmental regulations. 
The chief of police shall adopt, subject to the approval of the mayor and the civil service commission, rules and 
regulations for the government, discipline, equipment and uniforms of police officers, fixing their duties, and 
prescribing penalties for violation of any such rules and regulations and the creation and supervision of a police 
reserve. (Prior code § 2.52.050) 

2.56.060 Duties of police chief described. 
The chief of police shall have custody, care and control of the public property and equipment of the police 
department; he shall conduct periodic surveys of such property and arrange with the city engineer for the salvaging 



Shelton Municipal Code  
Chapter 2.56 POLICE DEPARTMENT* 

Page 2/2 

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 2001-1222, and legislation passed through March 7, 2023.  

of discarded or damaged items and submit recommendations to the city council as to future needs. He shall keep an 
accurate and complete record of all complaints, arrests, violations and convictions, and the disposition of each case 
handled by the department. The chief shall also keep a record of the accomplishments and performance of each 
police officer. Following the end of each calendar month, the chief of police shall submit to the mayor a written 
report on all activities and transactions of the department during the month; he shall also submit an annual report 
which shall include recommendations as he shall deem advisable with respect to departmental organization, budget, 
personnel, property or equipment, or such other matters as he shall consider to promote the effective operation of the 
police department. (Ord. 1921-0518 (part), 2018; prior code § 2.52.060) 

2.56.070 Procedure for appointment of police officers. 
The appointment of the chief of police and each police officer shall be first recommended by the civil service 
commission from the eligible list of qualified persons for such position, which recommendation shall be acted on for 
approval and appointment by the city council. No appointment by the city council shall be valid unless first 
recommended by the civil service commission. (Ord. 1921-0518 (part), 2018; prior code § 2.52.070) 

2.56.080 Qualifications of police officers. 
Each candidate for the position of chief of police and of the police department shall have graduated from high school 
or its equivalent and meet other standards and requirements as established by the civil service commission. Any 
false statement on the application records and files or any conviction of a crime other than minor traffic offenses 
shall automatically bar the applicant, or, if discovered subsequent to appointment, shall automatically vacate his 
appointment. (Prior code § 2.52.080) 

2.56.090 Application for appointment—Medical report. 
Each applicant for a position as a police officer or the position of chief of police must file with the civil service 
commission and the city treasurer-clerk a written application and a report by a duly licensed physician or surgeon 
that within ten days prior to the filing of the application the applicant is of good health and free from any deformity 
or physical defects or disease. (Prior code § 2.52.090) 

2.56.100 Deposit of funds with treasurer-clerk—Certificate of chief. 
All funds arising out of the police department operations that may be collected by any member of the department 
shall be deposited with the city treasurer-clerk not later than Tuesday of each week to be accompanied with a 
statement showing in detail the source of such receipts. The chief of police shall affix thereto his certificate stating 
that the money so paid is all of the funds collected or received by the department since the preceding statement so 
filed. (Prior code § 2.52.100) 

2.56.110 Deposit of fees, rewards. 
All fees, rewards and other special remuneration received by the police department or any member thereof shall be 
deposited with the city treasurer-clerk and shall constitute a special fund which shall be expended for equipment or 
property for the police department by order of the chief of police. (Prior code § 2.52.110) 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item D4) 
Touch Date: 06/20/2023 
Brief Date:       07/11/2023 
Action Date:  07/18/2023 

Department: Executive 
   
Presented By: Mark Ziegler 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
 
 ATTACHMENTS:  
 - Resolution No. 1275-0623 
 - Attachment A Employment   

Agreement 
  
   
 
  

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head   

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
 

 
City Clerk 
 
City Manager 

 
 

  
 

 
     

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
On June 20, 2023 the City Council approved the motion to appoint Mark Ziegler as City Manager and authorize 
the Mayor and Deputy Mayor to negotiate a contract.  The contract is presented for Council approval.    
 
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
N/A 
 
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
The City Manager position is budgeted in the 2023 City budget. 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff recommends: “I move to place Resolution No. 1275-0623 on the July 18 Council Meeting Action Agenda 
for further consideration”. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 1275-0623 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, 
MASON COUNTY, WASHINGTON, APPOINTING MARK ZIEGLER TO 
SERVE AS THE CITY MANAGER AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR 

TO SIGN AN EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY AND 
CITY MANAGER MARK ZIEGLER 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Shelton desires to appoint Mark Ziegler as the City 
Manager for the City pursuant to Chapter 35A.13 RCW, and the City and Mr. Ziegler desire to 
provide for certain procedures, benefits, and requirements regarding his employment with the City. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Shelton, 
Washington, that Mark Ziegler shall serve as the City Manager, and that the Mayor is hereby 
authorized to sign the employment agreement attached hereto and incorporated in “Attachment 
A.” 
 
INTRODUCED AND PASSED by the City Council on this the 18th day of July, 2023. 
 
Attest: 
 
___________________     ________________________ 
City Clerk       Mayor Onisko 
 
                     
 



RESOLUTION No. 1275-0623   ATTACHMENT A 
 

Employment Agreement 
 
 This agreement is made and entered into between the City of Shelton, Washington, 
hereinafter referred to as the CITY, and Mark Ziegler, hereinafter referred to as the CITY 
MANAGER, pursuant to these terms and conditions: 
 
 WHEREAS, the City wishes to employ the services of Mark Ziegler as City Manager of 
the City of Shelton; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties desire to provide for certain procedures, benefits, and 
requirements regarding the employment of the City Manager by the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Manager wishes to accept employment with the City under the 
terms and conditions recited herein. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, CITY and CITY MANAGER agree to the following: 
 
 Section 1. Scope of Authority, Duties, and Responsibilities. The City Manager shall 
assist the City Council in the performance of its duties and shall do all things required of him by 
the City Council to assist in the administration of the business of the City government; and shall 
oversee and supervise the various City departments and shall assist in the coordination and 
liaison of the City business between the City Council and the various City officers and City 
departments.  

 
Consistent with RCW 35A.13.080, the City Manager’s powers and duties shall be as 

follows.  The City Manager shall have authority to delegate the responsibilities outlined in this 
chapter as the City Manager deems appropriate. 

 
a. To have general supervision over the administrative affairs of the City; 

 
b. To appoint and remove at any time all department heads, officers, and employees of the 

City, except members of the Council, and subject to the provisions of any applicable law, 
rule, collectively bargained agreement, or regulation relating to civil service; 
 

c. To attend all meetings of the Council at which his attendance may be required by that 
body; 

 
d. To see that all laws and ordinances are faithfully executed, subject to the authority which 

the Council may grant the mayor to maintain law and order in times of emergency; 
 

e. To recommend for adoption by the Council such measures as he may deem necessary or 
expedient; 
 

f. To prepare and submit to the Council such reports as may be required by that body or as 
he may deem it advisable to submit; 
 



RESOLUTION No. 1275-0623   ATTACHMENT A 
 

g. To keep the Council fully advised of the financial condition of the City and its future 
needs; 
 

h. To prepare and submit to the Council a proposed budget for the fiscal year, as required by 
chapter 35A.33 RCW, and to be responsible for its administration upon adoption; 
 

i. To perform such other duties as the Council may determine by ordinance or resolution. 
 

In addition, consistent with Shelton Municipal Code § 2.18.030, the City Manager shall have 
the following specific duties.  

 
a. Under the direction and authority of the Council, he shall supervise, administer, and 

coordinate the activities and functions of the various City officers and departments in 
carrying out the requirements of City ordinances and the policies of the City Council, and 
to administer and supervise the carrying out of the decisions, regulations, and policies of 
the various City departments, as designated from time to time by the Council. 
 

b. He shall regularly report to the Council concerning the status of all assignments, duties, 
projects and functions of the various City offices and departments. 

 
c. He shall supervise all purchasing and expenditures by the various City offices, 

departments, commissions, and boards. 
 

d. He shall meet with the City Council as often as is necessary to keep them informed of the 
status and result of departmental operations and projects. 
 

e. He shall represent the City of Shelton at meetings with other governmental units, 
agencies, commissions, and associations as directed by the Council. 
 

f. He shall undertake special projects at the request of the City Council. 
 

g. He shall be informed about and remain cognizant of federal and state grant and loan 
opportunities that could be of pecuniary value to the City of Shelton and shall alert the 
proper City officials to any opportunities for federal and state grants which could benefit 
the City of Shelton. 
 

Section 2. Hours of Work. The City Manager acknowledges that the proper performance 
of the duties of the City Manager will require the City Manager to generally observe normal 
business hours and will also require the performance of necessary services outside of normal 
business hours. The City Manager agrees to devote such additional time as may be necessary for 
the full and proper performance of the City Manager’s duties and responsibilities and that the 
compensation herein provided includes compensation for all such services. The City Manager 
shall remain in the exclusive employ of the City and shall not accept any outside professional 
employment that in any way interferes with the performance of the City Manager’s duties. 
 

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=35A.33


RESOLUTION No. 1275-0623   ATTACHMENT A 
 

 Section 3. Salary and Benefits. The City shall compensate the City Manager with the 
following compensation and benefits: 
 

a. The City shall compensate the City Manager with an annual salary as established in the 
most current City of Shelton salary schedule for non-represented employees beginning at 
Step H effective April 1, 2023 with associated annual step increases.  As required by 
SMC §2.18.040, the salary of the City Manager shall be approved by the City Council in 
the annual budget. The City Manager’s salary may not be reduced unless budget 
restraints require an across-the-board reduction in non-represented City staff salaries. 
Any such reduction shall be no greater than the percentage reduction applied to other 
staff salaries. 

 
b. The City Manager shall receive all benefits to the same extent as other exempt 

management staff.  
 

c. The City shall pay the annual premium toward the purchase of a life insurance policy 
having an aggregate amount equal to one year of the City Manager’s base salary.  

 
d. The City shall match deferred compensation to the same extent as other exempt 

management staff.  
 

e. The City shall pay for memberships to the International City Manager’s Association and 
the Washington City Council Management Association. The City shall pay for one travel 
and expenses to one state conference per year. The City Council may allow additional 
funding for travel and expenses to additional professional conferences and trainings if the 
budget allows. 

 
f. The City Manager shall receive an automobile allowance of $400 per month, in lieu of 

mileage reimbursement. 
 

g. The City Manager shall accrue paid vacation leave benefits authorized by the City for 
other exempt management staff. 

 
h. The City Manager shall receive sick leave benefits authorized by the City for other 

exempt management staff. 
 
 Section 4. Term, Removal, and Resignation. The City Manager shall begin 
employment as the City Manager on July 19, 2023 and shall serve at the pleasure of the City 
Council, subject to the provisions in this Agreement, the City code, and state law. 
 

a. The City Manager may be removed by a majority vote of the City Council. At least 
thirty days before the effective date of his or her removal, the City Manager must be 
furnished with a formal statement in the form of a resolution passed by a majority vote 
of the City Council stating the Council’s intention to remove him and the reasons 
therefore.  Upon passage of the resolution stating the Council’s intention to remove the 



RESOLUTION No. 1275-0623   ATTACHMENT A 
 

City Manager, the Council by a similar vote may suspend him from duty, but his pay 
shall continue until his removal becomes effective. 

 
b. The City Manager may, within thirty days from the date of service upon him of a copy 

of the City Council’s resolution described in §3(a), reply in writing to the resolution. In 
the event no reply is timely filed, the resolution shall upon the thirty-first day from the 
date of such service constitute the final resolution removing the City Manager and his 
services shall terminate upon that day. If a reply shall be timely filed with the City 
Clerk, the City Council shall fix a time for a public hearing upon the question of the City 
Manager’s removal and a final resolution removing the manager shall not be adopted 
until a public hearing has been had. The action of the City Council in removing the City 
Manager shall be final. 

 
c. In the event that the City Manager chooses to terminate his appointment as City 

Manager, he shall provide the City Council with a written statement of resignation at 
least thirty days prior to the effective date of the resignation.  

 

Section 5. Severance Pay for Involuntary Termination without Cause. If the City 
Council terminates the City Manager’s appointment without cause, the City Manager shall 
receive a lump sum equal to six (6) months’ base salary at the time of the City Manager’s 
termination. In addition, the City shall pay for health, medical, and dental coverage contributions 
to continue existing coverage pursuant to COBRA for six (6) months following the date of 
termination. The City Manager shall not receive any severance in the event that he resigns, or he 
is terminated for cause. 

 
For purposes of this Agreement, any one of the following shall be grounds to terminate 

this Agreement for cause: 
 
a. Any willful, knowing, grossly negligent, or negligent breach, disregard, or habitual 

neglect of any provision of this Agreement, or any willful, knowing, grossly 
negligent, or negligent breach, disregard or habitual neglect of any duty or obligation 
required to be performed by a City Manager under City code and/or the laws of the 
United States or the State of Washington. 

 
b. Conduct relating to City employment that violates Shelton Personnel Policies or other 

reasonable standards of professional conduct in a substantial manner. 
 

c. Conviction of any criminal act relating to employment with the City or any other act 
or non-act affecting the ability of the City Manager to carry out the duties and 
responsibilities of the position. 
 

d. Conviction of any felony offense. 
 

e. Mental or physical unfitness that prevents the City Manager from carrying out the 
essential functions and duties of the position of City Manager.  



RESOLUTION No. 1275-0623   ATTACHMENT A 
 

 

Section 6.  Evaluation and Professional Development. The City Council shall review 
and evaluate the performance of the City Manager at least once annually in advance of the 
adoption of the annual operating budget. Annual performance review shall be in accordance with 
criteria developed by the City Council.  

 
Section 7.  Indemnification. Pursuant to and subject to SMC §2.82, the City shall defend 

the City Manager and his marital community from any claim, suit, or other legal action brought 
against the City Manager in conducting business of the City where the City Manager’s alleged 
acts or omissions were done in good faith and were, or in good faith are purported to be, within 
the scope of his official duties. This does not apply to alleged criminal acts unless the City 
Council so determines in its discretion and in accordance with law. The City Manager shall be 
covered under the City’s liability insurance policy for covered acts or omissions occurring in the 
performance of his duties as a City Official, on the same basis and to the same extent other City 
Officials are so covered. The City shall bear the full cost of any public official bond required of 
the City Manager under any law or ordinance. 
 
 Section 8.  General Provisions. The text herein shall constitute the entire Agreement 
between the parties. If any provision, or any portion thereof, contained in this Agreement is held 
unlawful, invalid, or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement, or portion thereof, shall be 
deemed severable, shall not be affected and shall remain in full force and effect.  The parties 
agree to immediately renegotiate any part or provision in this agreement rendered or declared 
invalid. The parties may amend this Agreement only by express written consent. This Agreement 
is contingent upon approval by the City Council. 
 
  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF,  
 
 
FOR THE CITY:     CITY MANAGER: 
 
____________________________   _____________________________ 
Mayor Eric Onisko  Date   Mark Ziegler     Date  
 
 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item E1) 

Touch Date: 05/19/2023  
Brief Date:    06/20/2023        
Action Date:  07/11/2023 

Department: Parks, Recreation & Facilities  
   
Presented By: Jordanne Krumpols  

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
Traffic Box Wrap Project Art 
Recommendations  

 
  ATTACHMENTS: 

-Proposed Top 4 Choices  
-Survey Results  

   

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head   

 
 

 
Finance Director   

 
 

 
Attorney  

 
 

 
City Clerk  

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   

Shelton Arts Commission, along with the Martha Reed Foundation, Peninsula Art Association, and Shelton 
Rotary, are seeking to install traffic box wraps around the community.  This public art project will add 
interest to often neglected infrastructure around the city.  This project is sponsored by the City, the Martha 
Reed Foundation, Peninsula Art Association, and Shelton Rotary who were part of the approval process.  
The Traffic Box Wrap Project procedures have been followed with tasks listed below:  

1) Call to Artist – The call for artists was distributed to the community of Mason County through press 
release and social media.  The deadline was May 5, 2023.  Sixteen community members 
submitted proposals for the project.  

2) The Arts Commission did the first round of jury on May 10, 2023, to make sure that art submitted 
followed all the criteria asked.  

3) Public Vote – We then held a public vote via Open Town Hall from May 15 – May 21, 2023 to 
determine which top four choices would go through the approval process.  We had 1,372 
responses.  

4) The Arts Commission approved the top 4 art pieces on May 24, 2023. 
5) State Approval – We then sent the approved art to the state on May 25, 2023 for their approval 

because the art would be installed on state traffic boxes. 
6) On June 20, 2023 staff are presenting the recommended art to the City Council for approval.  Upon 

approval, the art will be installed in mid-July to early August, weather depending.  
 
The selected work includes:  

Community Member Artwork Title Box Location 
Averie Homan  My Washington  1st & Cota 
Lori Heinzen  The Whistle Goes Silent  1st & Railroad  
Cindy Rivard High Steel Bridge  Olympic Hwy S & Cascade Ave  
Pat Denney Washington Rhodies  Olympic Hwy N & Wallace 

Kneeland Blvd 
  

 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

   
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
N/A 
   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
Donations from community clubs; Peninsula Art Association, Shelton Rotary, and Martha Reed Foundation.    
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Information can be obtained from the City Clerk   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
“I move to approve the Shelton Arts Commission’s Traffic Box Wrap Project recommended artwork.” 
   



Averie Homan – My Washington 

1st & Cota  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cindy Rivard – High Steel Bridge  

Olympic Hwy S & Cascade Ave 

 



Lori Heinzen – The Whistle Goes Silent  

1st & Railroad  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pat Denney – Washington Rhodies  

Olympic Hwy N & Wallace Kneeland Blvd 

 

 



1 | communityfeedback.opengov.com/12847 Created with OpenGov | May 22, 2023, 11:07 AM

Traffic Box Wraps Submissions
May 22, 2023, 11:07 AM

Contents

i. Summary of responses 2

Topic Registration Type: No registration



Summary Of Responses

Topic Registration Type: No registration

As of May 22, 2023, 11:07 AM, this forum had: Topic Start Topic End
Attendees: 1394 May 12, 2023,  9:06 AM May 22, 2023, 12:00 AM

Responses: 1372

Hours of Public Comment: 68.6

QUESTION 1

Please select your top 3 art submissions from the list below.

% Count

Averie Homan - My Washington 47.8% 656

Cindy Rivard - High Steel Bridge 42.6% 584

Johanna Brown - The Flight 21.0% 288

Kristina David - Best Friend and Beyond! 20.0% 275

Linda Frizzell - Any Day is a Good Day for Fishing 15.2% 209

Loa Padgett - Bokeh 6.4% 88

Lori Heinzen - The Whistle Goes Silent 45.2% 620

Maranda Cromwell - Rainbow Dog Runs Away 28.3% 388

Pat Denney - Washington Rhodies 36.4% 500

Samantha Worley - Dahlia Blooms 25.2% 346

2 | communityfeedback.opengov.com/12847 Created with OpenGov | May 22, 2023, 11:07 AM

Traffic Box Wraps Submissions

Rank your top 3 of these submissions for Shelton's next round of traffic box wraps to be installed at various
intersections throughout the city.



% Count

Verenice Vargas Villa - Everyone Can Blossom 11.8% 162

3 | communityfeedback.opengov.com/12847 Created with OpenGov | May 22, 2023, 11:07 AM

Traffic Box Wraps Submissions

Rank your top 3 of these submissions for Shelton's next round of traffic box wraps to be installed at various
intersections throughout the city.


	1 Agenda_20230711
	2 2023 Looking Ahead
	3 Vouchers_20230711
	4 Draft Minutes_20230516
	COUNCILMEMBERS AND PERSONNEL

	5 Draft Minutes_20230523_Study Session
	COUNCILMEMBERS AND PERSONNEL
	ADJOURN
	Mayor Onisko adjourned the meeting at 7:03 p.m.

	6 Briefing Civic Center Parking Lot Closeout
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	7 Resolution No 1274-0623 Civic Center Parking Lot Final Acceptance
	8 Civic Center Parking Lot Final Acceptance PP
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7

	9 Briefing to Vacate 5th St Grove to Cota
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	10 Ordinance 2006-0523 to Vacate 5th St Grove to Cota
	11 Exhbit A, 5th St Vacation Vicinity Map
	12 Exhibit B, 5th St Vacation Legal Description & Sketch
	13 Briefing Ordinance No. 2008-0623 Repealing and re-adoption SMC 2.56
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	13a Ordinance No. 2008-0623 Repealing and re-adoption SMC 2.56.doc
	14 Shelton Municipal Code Chapter 2.56 existing to be repealed
	15 Briefing Resolution No. 1275-0623 City Manager Contract
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	16 Resolution No. 1275-0623 Appointing Mark Ziegler as CM
	17 Resolution No. 1275-0623 Attachment A City Manager Contract Ziegler
	18 Traffic Box Wrap Briefing
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	19 Traffic Box Wrap Artwork
	20 Public Vote Results



